
 

 
 

Planning Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Wednesday 20 February 2013 

 

TIME: 

 

6.30 PM  

 

VENUE: 

 

Council Chamber, Harrow 

Civic Centre 

 
 
A BRIEFING FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERS WILL TAKE PLACE ON MONDAY 18 

FEBRUARY 2013 AT 6.00 PM IN COMMITTEE ROOM 3. 

A SITE VISIT FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERS WILL TAKE PLACE ON SATURDAY 16 

FEBRUARY 2013 STARTING AT 10.00 AM. 

 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chairman: 

 

Councillor Keith Ferry  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Mrinal Choudhury (VC) 
Bill Phillips 
William Stoodley 
 

Stephen Greek 
Joyce Nickolay 
Stephen Wright 
 

  
 

 
 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Graham Henson 
2. Ajay Maru 
3. Sachin Shah 
4. Jerry Miles 
 

1. Simon Williams 
2. Manji Kara 
3. Amir Moshenson 
 

  
 

 
 

Contact:  Miriam Wearing, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1542    E-mail:  miriam.wearing@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Planning Committee - 20 February 2013 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

 Guidance Note for Members of the Public attending the 
Planning Committee  (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. RIGHT OF MEMBERS TO SPEAK    
 
 To agree requests to speak from Councillors who are not Members of the 

Committee, in accordance with Committee Procedure 4.1. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

4. MINUTES   (Pages 3 - 12) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2013 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 

16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution. 
 



 

Planning Committee - 20 February 2013 

8. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive references from Council and any other Committees or Panels (if any). 

 
9. REPRESENTATIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS    
 
 To confirm whether representations are to be received, under Committee Procedure 

Rule 30 (Part 4B of the Constitution), from objectors and applicants regarding 
planning applications on the agenda. 
 

10. PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED    
 
 Report of the Divisional Director, Planning - circulated separately. 

 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Planning Protocol, where 
Councillors disagree with the advice of the Divisional Director, Planning, it will be the 
Members' responsibility to clearly set out the reasons for refusal where the Officer 
recommendation is for grant.  The planning reasons for rejecting the Officer's advice 
must be clearly stated, whatever the recommendation and recorded in the minutes.  
The Officer must be given the opportunity to explain the implications of the contrary 
decision. 
 

11. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT - PROPOSAL TO SEEK AN EXEMPTION FROM 
PROPOSED PERMITTED CHANGES FROM OFFICES TO RESIDENTIAL   
(Pages 13 - 18) 

 
 Report of the Divisional Director, Planning. 

 
12. INFORMATION REPORT - UPDATE ON PLANNING APPEALS AND 

ENFORCEMENT NOTICES   (Pages 19 - 26) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director, Planning. 

 
13. MEMBER SITE VISITS    
 
 To arrange dates for Member site visits that have been agreed during the course of 

the meeting (if any). 
 

14. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GUIDANCE NOTE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

ATTENDING THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Typical Planning Committee layout for Council Chamber 
 

 

    

 Planning  CHAIRMAN Committee   Legal  

   Officer      Clerk Officer 

     

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Order of Committee Business 
 

It is the usual practice for the Committee to bring forward, to the early part of the meeting, those 
planning applications where notice has been given that objectors wish to speak, or where 
members of the public have come to hear the debate. 

The Democratic Services Officer will ask those members of the public, who are seated before 
the meeting begins, which planning application they are interested in.  

Although the Committee will try to deal with the application which you are interested in as soon 
as possible, often the agendas are quite long and the Committee may want to raise questions of 
officers and enter into detailed discussion over particular cases.  This means that you may have 
to wait some time.  The Committee may take a short break around 8.30 pm. 
 

Rights of Objectors/Applicants to Speak at Planning Committees 
 

Please note that objectors may only speak if they requested to do so before 5.00 pm on 
the working day before the meeting.  In summary, where a planning application is 
recommended for grant by the Head of Planning, a representative of the objectors may address 
the Committee for up to 3 minutes.  

Where an objector speaks, the applicant has a right of reply.  

Planning Services advises neighbouring residents and applicants of this procedure.  

The Planning Committee is a formal quasi-judicial body of the Council  with responsibility for 
determining applications, hence the need to apply rules governing the rights of public to speak. 
Full details of this procedure are also set out in the “Guide for Members of the Public 
Attending the  Planning Committee” which is available in both the Planning Reception or by 
contacting the Committee Administrator (tel 020 8424 1542).  This guide also provides useful 
information for Members of the public wishing to present petitions, deputations or ask public 
questions, and the rules governing these procedures at the Planning Committee. 
 

Speakers 

Speakers Speakers P
U

B
L
IC

 S
E

A
T

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 

P
U

B
L
IC

 S
E

A
T

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 

PUBLIC SEATING AREA PUBLIC SEATING AREA ENTRANCE 

Planning 
Officers 

Councillors Councillors 

Agenda Annex
Pages 1 to 2 

1



Addendum Sheet 
 

In addition to this agenda, an Addendum Sheet is produced on the day of the meeting.  This 
updates the Committee on any additional information received since the formal agenda was 
published and also identifies any applications which have been withdrawn by applicants or 
which officers are recommending for deferral.  Copies of the Addendum are available for the 
public in the Council Chamber from approximately 6.00 pm onwards. 
 
 
Decisions taken by the Planning Committee 
 
Set out below are the types of decisions commonly taken by this Committee 
 
Refuse permission: 

Where a proposal does not comply with the Council’s (or national) policies or guidance and the 
proposal is considered unacceptable, the Committee may refuse planning permission.  The 
applicant can appeal to the Secretary of State against such a decision. Where the Committee 
refuse permission contrary to the officer recommendation, clear reasons will be specified by the 
Committee at the meeting. 

Grant permission as recommended: 

Where a proposal complies with the Council’s (or national) policies or guidance and the 
proposal is considered acceptable, the Committee may grant permission. Conditions are 
normally imposed.  
 
Minded to grant permission contrary to officer’s recommendation: 

On occasions, the Committee may consider the proposal put before them is acceptable, 
notwithstanding an officer recommendation of refusal.  In this event, the application will be 
deferred and brought back to a subsequent meeting.  Renotification will be carried out to advise 
that the Committee is minded to grant the application.  
 
Defer for a site visit: 

If the Committee decides that it can better consider an application after visiting the site and 
seeing the likely impact of a proposal for themselves, the application may be deferred until the 
next meeting, for an organised Member site visit to take place.  
 
Defer for further information/to seek amendments: 

If the Committee considers that it does not have sufficent information to make a decision, or if it 
wishes to seek amendments to a proposal, the application may be deferred to a subsequent 
meeting. 
 
Grant permission subject to a legal agreement: 

Sometimes requirements need to be attached to a planning permission which cannot be dealt 
with satisfactorily by conditions.  The Committee therefore may grant permission subject to a 
legal agreement being entered into by the Council and the Applicant/Land owner to ensure 
these additional requirements are met.  
 
 
(Important Note:  This is intended to be a general guide to help the public understand the 
Planning Committee procedures.  It is not an authoritative statement of the law. Also, the 
Committee may, on occasion, vary procedures.) 

2



�

� ����������	

������
����������������� 
�����
�

�
�
�

����������	

�������

��


��
����

�

������
���������
�
�
��������	� �� �	������	��������������
� � �
�
����


��	� �� ���������	�������

�� �������� ���!�
�� "#��������$�%��
�

�� �	����&��!	����
�� '�����������(�
�� ��������)������
�

���*��	��(���
+������(����
�
�

����� ��������������������������������
�
����� �!	� � ,	� �	��� ���� ����������� ��� ���(�
������� 	-� ���� -	��	.���� �����
���	������/�(��0����
+��1
�
�
2����������
+����
�

/�(��0����
+���
�

�	������	��)�����
���		����� �	������	��"#��������
�

��"�� ��#���
$����������
��%��&���
�
����� �!	� � ,���3� ��� ���	�������.�����	

������ ��	�������/����45�3� ����
-	��	.�����	������	�3�.�	�.�(��	������
+���	-������	

�����3�+�����	.����	�
(���!�	����������������
����������1�
�
�	������	��
�

���������"��������	��

��
�(�'	��� �6�7�8����9
�������*��0�3�&	����:���	.�
�
�

Agenda Item 4 
Pages 3 to 12 

3



�


�����
� � ����������	

������
�����������������

�'(�� !��
�����
���
$�)����������
�
����� �!	��,	��	������������-	��	.����������(��.�(���������1�
�
"������9��
����8����������"��������	���6���
�'����������	��3�,����	

	�3�
����
	���
�	������	�� ������ ������ ��������� �� �	�
���������� ������(�� ��� ����� ��� .�(�
�����
���	-�����'����������	������(�	��:	�(��2������	����9�0�(�
����,��(�5���
:�� .	���� ��
���� ��� ���� �		
� .���(�� ���� 
������ .�(� �	�(������� ���� 0	����
��	�5�
�

�'*�� ����������
�
����� �!	��,��������
�����(�	-�����
������������	�����*���
+��������+��
��!����(����������(�������(����	���������	��5�
�

�'+�� ,��
���-�����
��.�,�����
�������!�%�����
�����
�
����� �!	� � ,	� �	��� ����� �	� ��+���� ;��(��	�(� .���� ���3� 	�� ������	�(� 	��
��������	�(������0��5�
�

�'��� ��$��������$�
���
����
�����
������
��������/,���
����
�
����� �!	� � ,	� �	��� ����� ������.���� �	� ��-������(� -�	
��	������ 	�� 	�����
�	

�����(�	�������(��	�+�������0����������
������5�
�

�'��� ��%���������
���
��,
�����#��%%
�����
�����
�
����� �!	��,	��	���������	������(������	�(�����+���������0��5�
�

����� �!�)0������
�

�''�� ,
�����#��%%
�����
��������������
�
9�����	�������.���� ����<	���� 	0���
���� $"���((� �	� 9�-	�
���	�%�"����=>73�
����"������
�.�(� ��
������ ����� �	� ���� ������� �(� ��� �	�������� ��-	�
���	��
��������� �	� 0���	�(� ���
(� 	�� ���� ������� ���� .�(� +�(��� 	�� ��-	�
���	��
�����0����-����������(������	-�����������5��9��.�(���
�������	���������������
	����� �	� ���+��� ��
+��(� �	� �	�(����� ���� ��-	�
���	�� ����0���� �	� ���� ���
(�
+�-	��� ���
� -	������(�	�5� ���
+��(�.������0�(��� ��������������	���6�?�.�(�
��-�������	�������@��
������������	���6����(�(������	�������������
5���
�
����� �!	� � ,���� ����	����� +�� ��0��� �	� ����:���� 	-� ��������� �	� �((��� ����
����(�	���	����(������(�����	-��������������	�(��	�(������5�
�
1�,,�)��0)�2� */(*3� 4)25�5�0�� 6�7��.� +"8�"� 06�� 9���!:�;.�
�0�2�����
�
/�-������1���6����6���$��(����:	
�(�<��%5��������	-�A(��	-����(�3����	���
����,�������		�(�-�	
�2--����A(���	��=����-��	������������(�$���((�'���	���%B�
C@���(�	�� ��� ,����� ��		�B� C@������� "�������	�(� ���������� 9�(�������	�� 	-�

4



�

����������	

������
����������������� 
�����
�

)���	.(3� /		-�����(� ���� �	���� �����(B� &�.� C�������B� /�-�(�� ���� ������
��	����� ���  �	���� ��		�B� ���	�� "�������	�(� �	� C@������� ���!���� ����
<���(������B�"�����	����2--(�������!����"����$��������(%���� ����/����	-��4

���$C0��%�,���'�	��.��3�����
	���$/���	(�����0��"��������	�%5�
�
"��	--����� ���	����������(�@�����	-� ����-���(�.����-������	
�������.����<�-���
��
:	
�(���������(5��"���	��������������	����������-���(�	������������-�		��.����
�	��-���������((�+����(�������.�(��	������-�3�������.�(��	���;����
����-	������-�5��
�
9�� ��(�	�(�� �	� ;�����(� ���(��� +�� ��
+��(3� ��(�	�(�(� .���� ��	0����� �(�
-	��	.(1�
�

•� �������
���������	����(��((�	��������!���������(�+(�;������	�������������
���������	���	���0��	�������		-����������	�����������-�		�B�

�

•� ���� :���� 	-� ,��
(� ��������� �	� �--	���+��� �	�(���� .�(� +�(��� 	�� ����
������	����-���(���������+����������������(��������0��+������������(��B�

�

•� ����
���
����.	����+��
�����	� ���� ��+���	�������������������� ����
��
+���	-������(�D��	-���	�����B�

�

•� �����	�(������	���������������������	������(�.������	�����	����������+��
	0���		!��������	���(�	�(�(�����+���������0��5��,����	��-�		��	-�����
��0��	�
����.	�����	��+��0�(�+���-�	
����(����	������(B��

�

•� ���� :���.��(� 	--����(� �	�(������� ���� �	����	�� 	-� ���� ���� ���!����
�������+��5��9��.�(���0�(�������������(��	-������������!����(����(�.�(�
�	����
������������������	�(�������	�5��"(������������!������	0�(�	��.�(�
��� (���� -�	
� ���� ���0�	�(� ��0��	�
���� ��� .�(� �	�(������� �������+���
����	��������@��((�	-�����<	��	�������$����%5�

�
!��)�)�2	�
�
$�%� 5��20�!����
�((�	��-	��������0��	�
������(���+�������������������	��

���� (�+
������ ����(3� (�+#���� �	� �	�����	�(� ���� ��-	�
���0�(� ���	�����
���������	
�����	��	-��������	������"����
����+���?���+����������B�

�
$�%� ����*�0�(�	����*�����	��	-���������3� ����	�(������	��.���� ����*�����	��	-�

<��������� 	0�����������0���(3�+������	��(����	�(�������������	������
"����
�������� �	�����������
��	���
���
���(� �	� �����	�����	�(�	��
���������������
���B�

�
$�%� ����� �-� ���������	������"����
����.�(��	���	
�������+���?���+������

����� ���� *�0�(�	���� *�����	�� 	-� ��������� +�� ���������� �	� ��<7���
������������
�((�	��	��������	���(������	�������������	��5�

�
���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ����	� 	���
�������	����
��������������

�

5



�


���4�
� � ����������	

������
�����������������

1�,,�)��0)�2�*/(+3�06����;���2�0)�2�����06�,��!)��6��,)0��.�
9���4��;�6)��.��0�2�����
�
/�-������1���6����6���$,���/	����&���	����2���	�������:	(������&:��,��(�%5�
,��� <������ 	-� �� ���0���(� *���� ���� "((	������� C@��0���	��)	�!(� ���� ,���
"���	0����	��,����/�
	0��5��
�
,��� �����
��� ��0�(��� ����� �� (�������� ���������	�� -	�� �� ��.� �	(������ ����
+���� (�+
�����3� �� ���(������	�� 	�� .����� ���� +���� 
���� �	� ���� ��#	��
*�0��	�
���(� �����5� � 9�� .�(� �
�	������ �	� �	��� ����� ���� ��������� 	-� ����
���������	��+�-	��� �����	

������.	�����	�� ��������� �����	

�����E(�(������
	�� ����
�����	(���������������	�5� �"�A����������A������!����.�(���	�	(��� �	�
��(������������0����	-�����	��������������
��������(�+������"���������(�	����
����
����������������������	��+��(�+(�;���������-�(��5�
�
"��	--����� ���	����� ����� ������������	�� �	� ����*�0�(�	����*�����	��	-����������
.�(� ��	�	(��� �	� ��(���� ����� ���� .	�!3� �-� ����	0��3� �	���� +�� �������!���
	��(��������+������(�����(��(	�5����	����������0��(���	

���(�+�������0���
���	���	���������	-������	�(������	������	���������������	��.	����+��(�+
������
�	� ������+����������������	

�����5� �,���(�����	����	�(������	������	������
+���� �@������� �	� ��� ���(� �	� ���	.� ������	���� ��
�� ���� �	� ���� ����(�
�(�
����	�5�
�
9�� ��(�	�(�� �	��� ;��(��	�� ���.�(��	���� ����� ���� �������
����	-� ����(�.	����
��!�����	����	��������0�������������	-�����(5�
�
9��.�(��	����������������	���	-�������	�	(���.	�!(�������������
�������������
�	������	(������-�	
�)		��<���������	���������(��������((5��2--����(���0�(���
����� ���� ���������	�� +�-	��� �����	

������ ���� �	�� ��0	�0�� ������	�� 	-� �� ��.�
����((��	������	(�����3����������	����������	��������	����	��	-�����
�����	(������
����((5� ,��(�� 
�����(� ���� ��������� .������ ���� 
���� ��+���� ���������
���������	��.�����.	����+���	�(�������������������	

������
������5�
�
!��)�)�2	��,��������*�0�(�	����*�����	��	-����������+�������������	�����������
������������������	�3��(��
������+�������������
3�(�+#�����	������	�����	�(�
���� ��-	�
���0�(� ���	����� ���� ���� �	
�����	�� 	-� ��� A���������� A������!���3�
-	��	.������������	-������	�(������	������	��	���>�������������3�(�+#�����	��	�
������	������0��(���	

���(�+����������0��5�
�
���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ������	�� 	���
�������	����
��������������
�
1�,,�)��0)�2�+/(*3�9�20��;�,�)��;.�06�������2.��0�2�������
�
/�-������1� � �6�?�?6��� $��� ��
�(� ,�0���	�%5� <�(���� '�������� �	�(���1�
/������
����)���	.(�$/���	(�����0�%5�
�
!��)�)�2	��5��20�!���(����+���������	�(����-	��������0��	�
������(���+���
����������������	������(�+
����������(3�(�+#�����	��	�����	�(�������-	�
���0�(�
���	����5�
�

6



�

����������	

������
����������������� 
���7�
�

���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ����	� ���	���

��������������	�
��������������
�
1�,,�)��0)�2�+/(+3��+�8�+=��0�0)�2����!.�6����:�
�
/�-������1� � �6�>746��� $<��� /���� C(����� <�
����%5� ������	�� 	-� &�.� ,�����
��		���	���	0�����	������-��	������������(B�C@�������"�������	�(5�
�
"�� 	--����� ���	����� ����� ���� ��(������ ���
��� ��(�������� .	������ ���� +����
��
	0��������	������������(����	����0���5�
�
9����(�	�(���	�;��(��	�(����.�(��	������������.�(�����������������������@�(�����
����((�.	���� �	������� �	�+���(���.���� ���� ���������((� -	���
���������(�5��
,��� ��+���� ����
� �
��	0�
���(� ��� ���� :���(� 	-� ,��
(� ��������� ���������
�
��	0�
���(��	����������.����	�<�	��/	���.�����.�(���	���������.��5�
�
!��)�)�2	���
�
$�%� 5��20�!����
�((�	��-	��������0��	�
������(���+�������������������	��

���� (�+
������ ����(3� �(� �
������ +�� ���� �������
3� (�+#���� �	�
�	�����	�(����� ��-	�
���0�(� ���	��������� �����	
�����	��	-��������	��
����"����
����+���7�"���������B��
�

$�%� ����*�0�(�	����*�����	��	-���������3� ����	�(������	��.���� ����*�����	��	-�
<��������� 	0�����������0���(3�+������	��D����	�(�������������	������
"����
�������� �	�����������
��	���
���
���(� �	� �����	�����	�(�	��
���������������
���B�

�
$�%� ����3��-����������	������"����
����.�(��	���	
�������+���7�"���������3�

����*�0�(�	����*�����	��	-����������+������������ �	���<7������������
���
�((�	��	��������	���(������	�������������	��5�

�
���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ����	� 	���
�������	����
��������������
�
1�,,�)��0)�2� +/(�3� ���0���<0� 6�7��.� *((� 2��06��0� ���!.�
6����:�
�
/�-������1� � �6�=?�6��� $'���.��� :	
�(� <��%5� ������� 	-� A(�� 	-� C@�(�����
 �	���� ��		�� �	

������� A���� ���	� ,����� ���-
�	�������� ����(� $A(�� ���((�
��%B�C@�������"�������	�(5�
�
,��� 	--����� ��0�(��� ����� ���� ���������	�� .�(� ���	����� �	� �	

������ �(� ����
��	�	(��� �	�(�������� �� 
�������� ���������� -�	
� ���� ��0��	�
���� ����� ����
�����-	���.�(�	��(��������(���
��	-���������	�5���
�
,����	

������.�(���-	�
���������������������	��.�(�������	�������.��������
�����������(����	��0��.��������(����((-���
��!������	-��	

�������(�����-	��
�� ����(� .�(� �� ���(	��+��� ��������	�� 	-� ���� 
��!��5� � �������� �0������� ����
+����(�+
�������	���������������������(����������������	-�������
�������	-�����
��	����-�		������+������-���	�5�
�

7



�


�����
� � ����������	

������
�����������������

9����(�	�(���	�;�����(����(���+����
+��(3����.�(��	���������������0��	�
����
.�(� #�(�� 	��(���� ���� -������ 	-� ���� �	���� :���	.� �	���	����� ���!���� F	���
$��F%5��,����	������.�(�������������0��.������(���������!�������
��(5�
�
9��.�(��	���� ����3��(� ������0��	�
����.	���� ��(���� ��� ������	�������(���!����
�������
���(�.������������(�	������-��(��-�		�3�������.�(����	�����	������������	�
(	������(�����	�5��,����	��������������(6-�		�(���	0������		����0��(�	-�(	����
��(�����	�5��
�
!��)�)�2	� � 5��20�!� ���
�((�	�� -	�� ���� ��0��	�
���� ��(���+��� ��� ����
���������	�� ���� (�+
������ ����(3� (�+#���� �	� �	�����	�(� ���� ��-	�
���0�(�
���	�����
�
���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ����	� 	���
�������	����
��������������
�
1�,,�)��0)�2� +/(�3� !72:��!;� 6�7��.� �"=� 4�20�2� ���!.�
6����:�
�
/�-������1� � �6�7=46��� $��� �� �	���%5� ��	�	(��� A(�� 	-�  �	���� ��		�� -	��
"��������0��A(���(�C���������((�'�� $2--���%�	��&	�
/�(��������� 9�(������	�� -	��
���� ��	0�(�	�� 	-� C������	�� $���((� *�%3� ���� 9�(�������	�� 	-� �� ����-	�
� <�-�� �	�
��	���C�������5�
�
9����(�	�(���	���;��(��	�3����.�(��	����������������
�((�	��.	�������	.�+	���
'������*���(��+����-�	����(��	���������	�����	�(���-	��������	��	-��������(����
�	�����	��������������5��
�
!��)�)�2	� � 5��20�!� ���
�((�	�� -	�� ���� ��0��	�
���� ��(���+��� ��� ����
���������	�� ���� (�+
������ ����(3� �(� �
������ +�� ���� �������
3� (�+#���� �	�
�	�����	�(�������-	�
���0�(����	�����
�
���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ����	� 	���
�������	����
��������������
�
1�,,�)��0)�2�+/('3�=+�)�,��)���!�) �.�2��06�6����:.�6����:.�
�
/�-������1� ��6�4�=6��� $��(�'�����<�����%5������-������	-� <�.-���C@�(�����A(�1�
�	��������A(��	-���*.�������	�(���(�?����-
�	������������(�������&	�����-

�	������������5�
�
"�� 	--����� ���	����� ����� ���� ���������	�� .�(� ��-������ -�	
� ���� ���������
�	

������
������� 	�� ���*���
+��� ����� �	� ���	.� -������� �	�(�������	�� 	-�
���� (�+
������ ��-	�
���	�� +�� ��
+��(� ���� 	--����(5� � ��+(�;����� �	� ����

������3� �� ��
+��� 	-� ��
+��(� ���� +���� ��� �	� (��� ���� �0������5�
C�0��	�
������:���������� �	�-��
���+�� ������� ����� ������?� ������	������ ����
+������0��������	�(��-��	��������-���(�.����!������(�����+����		
(5�
�
,����	

�������	������������.�(��	����������������������	���	�+���((�((������
���	�������.��������������	�����(�+����������	���=�����������	��������	�������
.���� ���� ,	.�� ���� �	������ ��������� "��� .����� .�(� �0������� +�(��5� � ,���
	--����� �����	����@�����(� -�	
� ������6=?��������������@�>�.���������������	.�

8



�

����������	

������
����������������� 
���?�
�

���� ���������	�� (�	���� +�� ��(���5� � 9�� (�

���3� ���(� ��	0����� -	�� ����
��(�+
�((�	��.����-��������0�������	-������0�	�(�����-�(������������	�B��������
�	� �	�(����� ���� +������� 	-� ��	+�+������ ����� ���� ��0��	�
���� ���� +���� ���
�@�(������ -	�� ���� ��(�� 4� ����(� ���� �	�� +��	��� ���(	��+��� �	�+�B� ����
"��������E(��0������������	����0���	�+���	���+	�����B��������.�(����������������
��(�5� �,���	--����(�.�����	����0�(���� ������	�����(�������(�����+����
���+���
������	��0�����������+������	0����������(�� ��������
� ����� ������0��	�
����
����+��������@�(������-	��������(��4�����(5�
�
"� ���
+����@���((��� ����0��.� ����� ���� ���!�	-��0�������	-� ����0��������������
+���(�(����(������:�2�������� ����� ����0������ -���(5� �"� -���������
+���(������
�������������	��(���������0�������	-���������+���(3���0	���(�-	��-�������	���	��-	��
-��������� 	�� +����		
(5� � ,���	���� ��0	���(� (�+
������.���� -	��
����������5��
:��.	������0���@�������+���(��	�+�����������-	��G",�����	(�(5�
�
,���	--����� ��(�	����� ����� ������-�����	��	-���:�2������� �������4�:	�(����
"���.	�������	.�-	��������0�(�	��	-�����	������ ���	�-���(5� �,��(�.�(���--������ �	�
������-�����	����������������������(����	�5��
����
9�� ��(�	�(�� �	� ;�����(� ���(��� +�� ��
+��(3� ��(�	�(�(� .���� ��	0����� �(�
-	��	.(1�
�

•� �����������������
���(�������������������������	���.�(���(�	�(�+���-	��
��(3������������3�.����3������	������,�@�'���(B�

•� ��� ���� +���� �	�-��
��� ����� C�0��	�
������ :������ ���� �	�� 0�(����� ����
��	������ ���	�� �	� ���� �((��� 	-� ���� �������� -	�� �� :	�(�� ��� ���������
2�������	��$:�2%5�

�
9�������
�������������������	�3���
+��(��@���((�������0��.�����1�

�

•� ����(������	-�����<	����*�0��	�
�������
�.	�!��������	.���(�:�2(�
(�	���� +�� ��!��� ���	� ���	���5� � ,��� �����
��� (������ ����� ��
������
����������������*	��
����$��*%�����(�����+������	�����-	��
:�2(�+����������������	���������	�(�������	��.�(��	��-	����:�2B�

�

•� �	������ .�(� �@���((��� ����� ���� ��
�(� 	�� ���� �������� �����
���(�
.�����	������(������������������	�����	��5��)���(���	�����������������0����
����������(�	��	�����������	�����	���.�(��	����;�����3����������(�	���������
�������� �����
���(� (�+
������ 	-� ���� ��
�(� ����� .���� ��(���� ��� ����
����(����.	����+���@������B�

�

•� ���� �������������
���(������	�� ���������������	��������������
���(5��
,����-	���������
+���	-�-���(�����@�(�������	�����	��+����	0����	�+��>B�

�

•� ��������+��������	���.	������0������(������-	����������	��������	������
��@����
���(B�

�

•� C�0��	�
������:������2--����(������	��0�(�����������	������(	��	�����	��
�	�-��
������������
���(5�

���

9



�


���>�
� � ����������	

������
�����������������

"���
+���	-������	

��������	�	(�����-�(���	������(�
����	���(�	��.�����
�������������	������+�������0�	�(�����-�(��5� �,��(�.�(�(��	������������� �	�
����0	��������������5�
�
!��)�)�2	� � ��<7��!� �����-������ 	-� <�.-��� C@�(����� *�0��	�
���� -	�� ����
��0��	�
���� ��(���+��� ��� ���� (�+
������ ����(� ���� ���������	�� -	�� ����
-	��	.�������(	�1�
�
,���<	�������������"���	������(��	��(���(-���������(�--��������0���������(�+����
��	0������	���
	�(����������3�	������+�������	-���	+�+������(3�����(�����
-�
����
�.�������	�(�� ��� ��� 9
�������*��0�3�&	����:���	.3�������(�@3�:"�� ?<����(�
+���� ��� �(�� �(� ?� (��-
�	�������� -���(� ���� �� �	�
(��-
�	�������� -���� -	�� ��
�	�����	�(�����	��	-�������(��4�����(����	���	����������	-����(����������	�5��,���
�@�(�������0��	�
���� �(� �����-	����	�(��������	�+������.-��������(�(��������
<	���� ��������� "���	����� ��-�(�� �	� �((��� �� �����-������ 	-� <�.-��� C@�(�����
*�0��	�
���5�
��
���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ������� 	���
�������	����
��������������
�
1�,,�)��0)�2�+/(=3�+>*�2��06��0����!.�6����:�
�
/�-������1���6�?��6���$'������%5��������	-�A(��	-� �	������		��-�	
���	��
$���((�"�%��	�*��������������$���((�*�%5�
�
"�� 	--����� ��0�(��� ����� ���� ���������	�� .�(� ���	����� �	� ���� ���������
�	

������ +����(�� ���� ��	�	(��� �����(������ �� ���������� -�	
� ����
*�0��	�
������������������-	���.�(�	��(��������(���
��	-���������	�5�
�
!��)�)�2	� � 5��20�!� ���
�((�	�� -	�� ���� ��0��	�
���� ��(���+��� ��� ����
���������	�� ���� (�+
������ ����(3� (�+#���� �	� �	�����	�(� ���� ��-	�
���0�(�
���	����5�
�
���� �����		��� 
������ �	� 	�� 
�� ��������� 	��	� 	��� ��������� 	�� ����	� 	���
�������	����
��������������
�
1�,,�)��0)�2�+/(>3�5���<�;2���7�0.�9�)�4<)��!�.�6����:��
�
/�-������1���6�=7=6���$ ��(-�����	����������
�����	�<��%5��5=
�:���� ����
��	������/	@����:���5�
�
!��)�)�2	� �!�<����!��	�(�������	�� 	-� ���� ���	��� �	� ���� ��@��
������� 	-�
�����	

�����5��
�

�'=�� �������?�
$�,
�����#��%%��
�!�����
���������$
���������������������
�
����� �!	��,	��	���������������	���.	����+��(�+
�������	�������@��
������5�
�

10



�

����������	

������
����������������� 
���=�
�

�'>�� ������������ ��������
�
����� �!	� � ,���� �� (���� 0�(��� +�� ��������� �	�  ��(-���� �	���3� '���!-����(3�
:���	.5�
�
$&	��1��,���
������3���0�����	

����������5����
3���	(������>5����
%5�
�
�
�
�
�
$������%��2A&�9<<2/��C9,:��C//H�
�����
���
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

Planning Committee  

Date of Meeting: 

 

20th February 2013 

Subject: 

 

Permitted Development – Proposal to 
seek an exemption from proposed 
permitted changes from offices to 
residential. 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Stephen Kelly, Divisional Director, 
Planning 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

On 24thJanuary 2013, the government announced its intention to amend the 
scope of permitted development to provide for the change of use between 
office (ClassB1 (a) and residential (Class C3) use classes. The proposals 
have prompted widespread concern amongst planning authorities located in 
areas where there is a high demand for residential development, and where 
the differential between office and residential land values are significant. 
Whilst the full details of the proposals, which may include some form of “prior 
approval” process, are outstanding, the Chief Planner has written to all Local 
Planning Authorities outlining the government’s intention to provide for an 
“exemption” from the proposals. Requests for an exemption need to be 
submitted by 22 February 2013.   
 

FOR DECISION 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That officers write to the Secretary of State to request an exemption from the 
government’s proposed changes to permitted development rights for the 
Heart of Harrow Intensification Area for the reasons set out in this report.  
 
 

 

Agenda Item 11 
Pages 13 to 18 

13



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
The Chief Planner’s letter makes it clear that exemptions to the introduction of 
the new permitted development rights will only be granted in exceptional 
circumstances where it can be demonstrated that it will lead to either; a) the 
loss of a nationally significant area of economic activity or b) substantial 
adverse economic consequences at the local authority level which are not 
offset by the positive benefits the new rights would bring.   
 
This paper proposes that the Council write to the Secretary of State, to seek 
an exemption from the proposed permitted development provisions, for the 
area covered by the Harrow and Wealdstone (Heart of Harrow) area Action 
Plan. The reasons for seeking an exemption are set out below.  
 
Office accommodation in Harrow. 
The recently published Authority Monitoring Report (April 2011 - March 2012) 
indicates a decline in office floorspace in the borough from 400,601 sq.m in 
2003 to 324,173 sq.m in 2012.  Similarly, despite a fall in the middle of the last 
decade, vacancy rates have moved from 11.5% in 2003 to 14.95% in 2012. 
Harrow town centre accounts for some 36% of the overall office stock in the 
borough. Since 2006, vacancy rates have fluctuated from 9.13% (in 2007) to 
30.1 % (in 2011), although they have improved to 21.5% in 2012. A quarter of 
all people employed in the borough (25.45%), work in Harrow Town centre.  
 
As part of the examination of the core strategy, site specific Development 
Plan Document and the proposed Community Infrastructure Levy, the Council 
has recently undertaken assessments of development viability which have 
looked at land values and rental yield across the borough, and within the 
“heart of Harrow.” This analysis demonstrates a significant difference in office 
and residential land values that would make the conversion of office space to 
residential attractive in all circumstances and locations across the borough but 
especially within the higher residential value areas, such as Harrow Town 
Centre and within the north of the borough. 
 
Housing supply and management  
Housing demand in the Borough remains strong. Whilst there are a number of 
stalled residential sites across Harrow, notably Bradstowe House in Harrow 
Town Centre, the Borough is one of only 10 in London to have exceeded its 
housing delivery target over the past five years. The Core Strategy and site 
allocations Development Plan Development’s which were the subject of 
recent examination, have identified and allocated sufficient land to fully meet 
the 15 year housing target within the London Plan, without relying on the need 
for windfall office conversions to meet an identified shortfall. The Borough has 
successfully managed conversions of unsuitable second hand stock into high 
quality, sustainable mixed use developments where the residential component 
has been able to cross subsidise new, employment floorspace that 
contributes towards meeting employment as well as physical social and 
economic regeneration objectives set out in the plan. New developments 
proposed at Kodak and Colart in Wealdstone, and Lyon Road and Tesco 
Station Road store in Harrow Metropolitan Town Centre embody a 
constructive and creative approach to renewal that uses the opportunities 
provide by the significantly higher value of residential development to deliver 
homes and infrastructure as part of a clear, long term, strategy for the Heart of 

14



 

the Borough. This strategy, clearly articulated in the up to date Harrow Core 
Strategy (2012), mirrors the designation of the area as an Area for 
Intensification within the London Plan 2011 because of its potential to 
contribute to London’s future employment and housing needs.  
 
Heart of Harrow as a strategic employment location 
The Heart of Harrow already contributes some 57% of the office 
accommodation and 72% of the employment provided within the borough. 
The London Plan (2011) and Heart of Harrow Area Action Plan (Pre 
submission consultation draft) seek to utilise the excellent connectivity, and 
ready supply of development sites (46Ha) to deliver a significant uplift in 
economic, social and physical outcomes. The strategy envisages mixed use 
re-development on a number of allocated sites for a combination of 
employment (including office) development enabled by new higher quality, 
and higher density residential developments. The strategy has been 
welcomed by the development industry for providing certainty and consistency 
to enable investment to take place, whilst safeguarding values and the overall 
range of amenities, including employment, required to create a successful, 
sustainable metropolitan centre.  
 
Harrow as an incubator of Small and Medium Enterprise 
The Local Economic Assessment 2011/12 states that small businesses 
employing 0-4 employees constitute 78% of all businesses in the borough. 
One in five of those businesses had been established within the last two 
years, much higher than the national average of 15%. The majority of 
employment takes place within small businesses, which traditionally use 
secondary and lower cost employment space, such as offices. The supply of 
offices has grown to meet these demands, with a range of low cost, flexible 
tenancies.  
 
The Annual Monitoring Report shows that vacant office space fell in the 
Metropolitan Town Centre by 1,180 m2 creating 56 jobs. The council expects 
this trend to continue. It is investing, jointly with the Greater London Authority 
millions of pounds in public realm improvements and is starting an major 
inward investment initiative, funded in part by developers such as Land 
Securities which aims to actively market these amenities, and the 
opportunities provide by the borough, to new businesses and investors. The 
natural location for such enterprises, particularly touchdown investors from 
overseas, is the Heart of Harrow area, with its excellent communications to 
central London and the East and West Midlands, and strong “metropolitan” 
feel.  
 
Given the significant stock of second grade offices within the heart of Harrow 
(as opposed to prime high value stock) and the private nature of its 
ownership, as opposed to institutional portfolio based ownership, the Council  
considers that there is a risk of significant quantities of this supply, being 
converted to residential use without planning permission. This will drive up 
residual office values, prompt the termination of leases and result in the loss 
of a wide range of Small and Medium Enterprise business. In turn, this loss of 
daytime activity will adversely affect the vitality and viability of the retail and 
associated services within the Town centre, materially undermining the 
objectives of the Local Plan and London Plan.      
 

15



 

Proposal for an exemption 
It is clear from the Chief Planners letter that the Secretary of State is unlikely 
to entertain any submission that seeks exemption from the new provisions, for 
the entire borough. However, officers consider that given the exceptional 
circumstances that exist within the Heart of Harrow Intensification Area, the 
Council should seek an exemption from the provisions for this defined part of 
the borough. Having regard to the Chief Planners letter, these exceptional 
circumstances are summarised below:  
 

• The area is identified in up to date Local Plan (Core Strategy) and 
regional Plans (London Plan 2011) as an important employment 
location in London  

• The Council has an up to date Planning Policy framework with 
significant allocated land for housing development.  

• The Borough has consistently managed its land supply to exceed 
housing targets (and is one of only 10 boroughs in London to do so) 

• There is a significant differential between office and residential land 
values and evidence of a declining supply of office stock across the 
borough.  

• There is a significant quantity of occupied secondary office stock that is 
likely to be converted to residential use, resulted in displaced local 
Small and Medium Enterprise and business uses.  

• The proposals undermine the delivery of development sites allocated 
for comprehensive mixed use development alongside associated 
infrastructure to secure regeneration in the Heart of the Borough.  

 
Conclusions 
The proposals to enable the conversion of offices to residential use may 
provide a stimulus to development in some parts of the Country. In Harrow, 
where the Council has sought to pro-actively manage housing and 
employment land supply, as part of a progressive, planned development 
framework, the proposals risk seriously undermining the capacity of the 
Council and developers to deliver the comprehensive regeneration of the 
area. The Borough has consistently met, and planned for housing need, and 
has managed with developer partners, a pipeline of sites for housing, in full 
accordance with the objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
The emerging focus on Small and Medium Enterprise, and the investment 
made in promoting Harrow, and North West London, as a key part of 
London’s future enterprise storey risks being fatally undermined. For these 
reasons, officers consider that the Heart of Harrow Area for Intensification 
justifies an exemption from these emerging proposals.  

 
Options Considered 
 
There are no other options considered.  If we choose to take no action then 
this would mean that we will not be able to opt out at a later date. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
Harrow are currently meeting the housing targets set and permitting this 
change will increase the enforcement team workload. 
 

16



 

Given the existing enforcement workload (some 700 complaints per year, and 
the significant impact that the proposals are expected to have on the 
amenities of neighbouring properties, officers expect to see an increase in 
enforcement complaints, and demands for investigation. The change in the 
thresholds for what is, and is not, acceptable, may allow the service to “close” 
a number of existing and outstanding enforcement complaints, but officers 
expect to have to investigate both development, and if the temporary time 
period proposed is brought forward, compliance timetables.  
 
The service would need to re-structure, and re-focus, its resource in the event 
that the proposals were to be implemented. The existing professional 
resource is unlikely to be able to be sustained within the Council, without 
additional funding growth. The move from applying officer time to matters of 
judgement to matters of fact, would provide opportunities to migrate 
applications from professional officers to technical support staff (who are not 
necessarily qualified planners) as a means to mitigate the impact of declining 
fees and ensure these pressures are contained within existing budget .  
 
 

Risk Management Implications 
The proposals risk seriously undermining the capacity of the Council and 
developers to deliver the comprehensive regeneration of the area. 
 

Equalities implications 
 
None 
 
 

Corporate Priorities 
The proposals will impact upon the ability of the Council to manage the 
appearance of the built environment, and the amenities of residents and 
businesses across the borough.  
 

• Inappropriate development gives rise to adverse impacts upon 
environmental, physical social and emotional wellbeing of our 
residents. The proposals are therefore at odds with the significant work 
across the Council and the Heart of Harrow plans. 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Kanta Hirani x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 5th February 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Abiodun Kolawole x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date:  5th February 2013 

   
 

17



 

 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact: Stephen Kelly 020 8736 6149 
stephen.kelly@harrow.gov.uk   
 
 

Background Papers:   
None 
 
 
 
 

If appropriate, does the report include the following 
considerations?  
 
 

1. Consultation  NO 

2. Corporate Priorities NO  
 

18



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE. 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

20 February 2013 

Subject: 

 

INFORMATION REPORT – Update on 
Planning Appeals and Enforcement 
Notices 

 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Stephen Kelly - Divisional Director of 
Planning 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix A – Enforcement Grid 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report provides the Committee with an overview of Planning appeal 
decisions, and enforcement statistics for the third quarter of 2012/13. 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
 
2.1 Appeals Background 
 
This report provides the Committee with an overview on the appeal decisions 
received by the Council in Quarter 3 of 2012/2013. 

Agenda Item 12 
Pages 19 to 26 

19



 

 

 
2.2 Overview 
 
The decisions of the Council as Local Planning Authority are subject to a right of 
appeal. Appeals are made to the Planning Inspectorate, an agency of Government, 
established independently by the Secretary of State to review and in most cases, 
determine, planning appeals submitted. Planning Appeals may be determined by 
‘written representations’ – where the appeal is ‘heard’ by an exchange of written 
correspondence; an ‘informal hearing’ – where the parties meet to explore the 
reasons for refusal with a Planning Inspector or by way of a public inquiry, where 
formalised examination of the evidence takes place under the Direction of an 
Inspector.  
 
The majority of planning appeals are heard by way of written representations. 
Public Inquiries, because of their cost and the delay associated with them, are the 
least common form of appeal in the borough.  
 
In addition to the consideration of the planning merits of a specific application – 
centred upon the reasons for refusal, in some cases, Planning Inspectors will 
determine claims against the Council for applicants (or the Councils) costs arising 
as a result of unreasonable behaviour.  
  
2.3 Appeal Decisions by Type 
 
Table 1: Appeal Decisions by Type – 1 October 2012 – 31st December 2012 
 
Summary of Appeal Decisions (Oct – Dec 2012) 

Householder Appeals  
35 Decided  
13 Allowed  
% Allowed = 37% 
 

Enforcement  
4 Decided  
2 Allowed  
% Allowed = 50% 
 
Others (Written representations, informal hearings, public inquiries) 
17 Decided 
9 Allowed  
% Allowed = 53%  

 
 
 
The above table summarises the results of appeal decisions by type in the 
previous quarter (Q3). The success rate (for appellants) has risen since the last 
quarter with 42 % of all appeals being allowed. However, this quarter included 
double the appeals of Q2 and an improvement in householder appeal 
performance. With the percentage of householder appeals allowed dropping from 
45% to 37%. This improvement in performance for householder appeals has come 
as a result of work with the Development Management team to consider not just 
adopted guidance, but also to take into account site circumstances, being clear to 

20



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\9\3\AI00081399\$5haq1od0.doc 

identify harm cause prior to refusing permission. This work is on going and it is 
considered encouraging to note the continuous improvement this quarter.  
 
Performance in the ‘other’ category has dropped to 43% from 25%. There are a 
variety of appeal types within this category but 50% of the appeals allowed in 
December were resubmissions of applications for dwellings on garden land 
approved prior to the adoption of the NPFF and the Core Strategy. In order to 
address this and provide clarification and a definition of garden land to help 
decisions makers. The Council has prepared a draft Harrow Garden land 
Development Supplementary Planning Document. The SPD is currently the subject 
of a consultation and is available on the Councils website for comments. The 
adoption of the SPD should mean a significant improvement in Appeal 
performance for this type of application.  
 
The Enforcement Appeal performance has reduced since the last quarter. 
However, there was only 3 enforcement appeals in Q2 with 1 allowed and 4 
enforcement appeals in Q3 with 1 allowed and 1 part allowed as such it is not 
considered that the changes in performance are significant. It is also important to 
recognise that 2 out of the 4 appeals were located at 16 Exeter Road and one of 
the appeals for a front porch was dismissed with costs awarded to the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 
There are no examples of enforcement notices being dismissed on any basis of 
legal or procedural deficiency. 
 
2.4 Conclusion (Appeals) 
 
Planning Appeals introduce considerable additional costs to the planning 
application process for both applicants and the Council. They also prolong the 
uncertainty surrounding new development for surrounding residents and 
businesses. The outcome of planning appeals can be uncertain for both applicants 
and the Council. Wherever possible, the Planning Division is seeking to avoid 
unnecessary appeals by providing better, earlier and more consistent guidance 
and by ensuring that planning applications submitted respond to clear policy 
guidance setting out the expectations of the Council for quality, sustainability and 
amenity. When an application is refused, work within the team is increasingly 
focused upon ensuring that sound and clear reasons for refusal are provided, to 
enable an applicant to understand what needs to be changed (if possible) to make 
a proposal acceptable, and to allow the most robust defence of such reasons in the 
event of an appeal.   

 
2.7 Planning Enforcement 
 
Below is a summary of enforcement statistics for quarter 3 of 2012/13. A copy 
of the enforcement register is appended to this report for information. This 
quarter has seen the reduction in staff from 4 to 2 in the planning enforcement 
team, following the deletion of the Enforcement team leader post as part of 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy, and the departure of another officer to 
take up a more senior position in another authority. Notwithstanding this, the 
planning enforcement team continues to receive a significant number of 
complaints regarding alleged breaches of planning control, and has 
responded by investigating these breaches and closing  171 cases where 
investigation revealed there was no breach in planning control, or where the 

21



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\9\3\AI00081399\$5haq1od0.doc 

breach was minor, and not expedient in the public interest to pursue formal 
action. A total of 6 enforcement notices were served. This is a reduction from 
previous quarter and reflects the reduction in members of staff. 8 appeals 
against enforcement notices have been received. Of the enforcement appeals 
determined in this period, 2 out of 4 were allowed. This is discussed in the 
appeals section above. This is a lower level of performance that the high level 
of success on enforcement appeals from previous Quarters. The robustness 
of the enforcement process, including thorough consideration of identified 
harm, the expediency of taking action, will continue to be monitored.  As 
detailed in the appeals section above, there are no examples of enforcement 
notices being dismissed on any basis of legal or procedural deficiency.  
 
The Enforcement team has, in this quarter, also worked with Harrow and 
Brent Trading Standards to successfully prosecute a second landlord under 
the Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA). Further cases have been identified for 
similar action, and it is important to note that , following publicity on the 
successful POCA prosecution, other landlords in a similar position have 
confirmed that hey will be (and indeed have) complied with the requirements 
of their enforcement notices.  
 
Table 2: Enforcement Summary Oct - Dec 2012 
 

Months Total 
Cases 
Closed 

Total 
New 
Cases 
Created 

Total 
ENF 
Notices 
served 

Appeals 
Lodged  

Appeals 
Allowed  
 

Appeals 
Dismissed 

Prosecution 

Oct - 
Dec 

171 123 6 8 2 
(including 

1 part 
allowed 

2 2 (4 pending) 

 
 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
This report, insofar as it reports on enforcement action, will be updated on a 
quarterly basis, in accordance with Proviso F of the Planning and Building 
Control Scheme of Delegation, March 2012, which requires that any decision 
on taking enforcement action be reported to the planning committee.  
 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 

 
This report, for information, has no direct financial implications. 
 

Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
 

The delivery of effective defense against appeals and planning enforcement 
has a direct role to play in the achievement of Council Corporate priorities, 
including ‘Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe’ and ‘Supporting 
our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and businesses’.  
The objectives of the Council’s involvement in appeals and planning 
enforcement, set out in this report will contribute directly to improving the 

22



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\9\3\AI00081399\$5haq1od0.doc 

physical environment of the Borough and reinforcing the integrity of the 
statutory planning process, for the benefit of the Borough and its residents 
and businesses. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Kanta Hirani x  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:   7 February 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Abiodun Kolawole x  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:   4 February 2013 

   
 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Beverley Kuchar, Head of Development Management and   
Building Control, x6167 

 
 

Background Papers:   
Enforcement Register 
Schedule of appeals April to June 2012 

 
 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



 6
T

o
ta

l 
N

o
.C

a
se

s
 R

ep
o

rt
 D

a
te

:
1
7
/1

2
/2

0
1
2

E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
ID

P
E

R
IO

D
:

1
-O

ct
-2

0
1
2

1
7
-D

ec
-2

0
1

2
to

E
N

F
_
R

E
F

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

D
U

E
_
D

A
T

E
 *

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 O

F
 A

L
L

E
G

E
D

 B
R

E
A

C
H

 
N

o
:

IS
S

U
E

D

D
A

T
E

E
F

F
E

C
T

D
A

T
E

 *

E
N

F
/0

5
0

2
/1

2
/P

2
9
5

a 
S

ta
ti

o
n

 R
o

ad

H
ar

ro
w

H
A

1
 2

T
A

7
1

6
2

1
-A

p
r-

1
3

W
it

h
o

u
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
, 
th

e 
m

at
er

ia
l 

ch
an

g
e 

o
f 

u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

L
an

d
 

fr
o

m
 m

ix
ed

 u
se

 a
s 

a 
re

ta
il

 p
re

m
is

es
 a

n
d

 a
 h

o
u

se
 i

n
 m

u
lt

ip
le

 

o
cc

u
p

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
re

e 
to

 s
ix

 p
eo

p
le

 (
su

i 
g

en
er

is
) 

to
 a

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 a

s 
re

ta
il

 

p
re

m
is

es
 a

n
d

 s
ix

 s
el

f 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 u
n

it
s 

(s
u

i 
g

en
er

is
) 

("
U

n
au

th
o

ri
se

d
 U

se
")

2
2

-O
ct

-1
2

2
-O

ct
-1

2

E
N

F
/0

2
8

4
/1

1
/P

2
1
 P

ar
k

fi
el

d
 C

re
sc

en
t

H
ar

ro
w

M
id

d
le

se
x

H
A

2
 6

L
E

7
2

0
2

9
-M

a
r-

1
3

W
it

h
o

u
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
, 
th

e 
m

at
er

ia
l 

ch
an

g
e 

o
f 

u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

si
d
e 

to
 

re
ar

 e
x

te
n

si
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
d

w
el

li
n

g
h

o
u

se
 o

n
 t

h
e 

L
an

d
 t

o
 u

se
 a

s 
a 

se
lf

-c
o

n
ta

in
ed

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 u
n

it
 o

f 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

 (
"t

h
e 

U
n

au
th

o
ri

se
d
 

U
se

")

H
ea

d
st

o
n

e 
N

o
rt

h

2
5

-O
ct

-1
2

1
-N

o
v

-1
2

E
N

F
/0

2
8

0
/1

2
/P

3
5
 S

ta
n

m
o

re
 H

il
l

S
ta

n
m

o
re

H
A

7
 3

D
S

7
2

1
2

9
-D

ec
-1

2
3

.1
 W

it
h

o
u

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

er
m

is
si

o
n

, 
th

e 
m

at
er

ia
l 

ch
an

g
e 

o
f 

u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

L
an

d
 f

ro
m

 b
u

il
d

er
's

 y
ar

d
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
sh

o
p

 (
su

i 
g

en
er

is
) 

to
 a

 S
h

is
h

a 

L
o

u
n

g
e 

(s
u

i 
g

en
er

is
) 

("
th

e 
U

n
au

th
o

ri
se

d
 U

se
")

3
.2

 W
it

h
o

u
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
, 

th
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
an

 e
x

te
n

si
o
n
 t

o
 

th
e 

p
re

-e
x

is
ti

n
g

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s 
at

 t
h

e 
L

an
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

x
im

at
e 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
 

sh
o

w
n

 c
ro

ss
-h

at
ch

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 P
la

n
 2

 (
th

e 
U

n
au

th
o

ri
se

d
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t"

)

2
5

-O
ct

-1
2

1
-N

o
v

-1
2

E
N

F
/0

0
9

9
/1

1
/P

9
 C

ro
w

sh
o

tt
 A

v
en

u
e

S
ta

n
m

o
re

M
id

d
le

se
x

H
A

7
 1

H
N

7
2

2
2

9
-M

a
y

-1
2

W
it

h
o

u
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
, 
th

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 o
f 

a 
si

n
g

le
 s

to
re

y
 f

ro
n
t 

ex
te

n
si

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ar
t 

si
n

g
le

 a
n

d
 p

ar
t 

tw
o

 s
to

re
y

 s
id

e 
an

d
 r

ea
r 

ex
te

n
si

o
n
s 

to
g

et
h

er
 w

it
h

 a
lt

er
at

io
n

s 
an

d
 e

x
te

n
si

o
n

 t
o

 r
o

o
f 

co
m

p
ri

m
is

in
g

 

co
n

v
er

si
o

n
 o

f 
h

ip
 t

o
 g

ab
le

 a
n

d
 r

ea
r 

d
o

rm
er

 (
"U

n
au

th
o

ri
se

d
 

D
ev

el
o

p
em

en
t"

)

B
el

m
o
n

t

2
5

-O
ct

-1
2

2
-N

o
v

-1
2

P
ag

e 
1

 o
f 

2

*
  
T

h
e 

E
ff

ec
t 

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

p
li

a
n

ce
 D

u
e 

D
a
te

s 
a

re
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e 

if
 a

 v
a
li

d
 a

p
p

ea
l 

 i
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d

.

25



E
N

F
_
R

E
F

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

D
U

E
_
D

A
T

E
 *

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 O

F
 A

L
L

E
G

E
D

 B
R

E
A

C
H

 
N

o
:

IS
S

U
E

D

D
A

T
E

E
F

F
E

C
T

D
A

T
E

 *

E
N

F
/0

6
0

6
/1

1
/P

3
3
 R

ad
n

o
r 

A
v

en
u

e

H
ar

ro
w

M
id

d
le

se
x

H
A

1
 1

S
B

7
1

9
1

-M
a

r-
1

3
W

it
h

o
u

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

er
m

is
si

o
n

, 
th

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 o
f 

an
 o

u
tb

u
il

d
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e 

re
ar

 g
ar

d
en

 o
f 

th
e 

d
w

el
li

n
g

h
o

u
se

 o
n

 t
h

e 
L

an
d

 (
"t

h
e 

U
n

au
th

o
ri

se
d
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t"

)

M
a
rl

b
o
ro

u
g
h

2
5

-O
ct

-1
2

1
0

-D
ec

-1
2

E
N

F
/0

4
4

1
/1

2
/P

3
1
 M

o
rl

an
d

 R
o

ad

H
ar

ro
w

H
A

3
 9

L
U

7
2

3
3

0
-J

u
n

-1
3

W
it

h
o

u
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
, 
th

e 
m

at
er

ia
l 

ch
an

g
e 

o
f 

u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

g
ro

u
n
d
 

fl
o

o
r 

fl
at

 a
t 

th
e 

L
an

d
 f

ro
m

 u
se

 a
s 

o
n

e 
(1

) 
se

lf
 c

o
n

ta
in

ed
 f

la
t 

in
to

 u
se

 a
s 

tw
o

 (
2

) 
se

lf
 c

o
n

ta
in

ed
 f

la
ts

 (
"t

h
e 

U
n

au
th

o
ri

se
d

 U
se

")

1
0

-D
ec

-1
2

1
4

-D
ec

-1
2

P
ag

e 
2

 o
f 

2

*
  
T

h
e 

E
ff

ec
t 

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

p
li

a
n

ce
 D

u
e 

D
a
te

s 
a

re
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e 

if
 a

 v
a
li

d
 a

p
p

ea
l 

 i
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d

.

26


	Agenda
	Guidance Note for Members of the Public attending the Planning Committee
	4 Minutes
	11 Permitted Development - Proposal to Seek an Exemption from Proposed Permitted Changes from Offices to Residential
	12 INFORMATION REPORT - Update on Planning Appeals and Enforcement Notices
	enforcement grid 2012 - 4th qtr


